# CITY OF HUTTIG, ARKANSAS HUTTIG WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM DECEMBER 31, 2020

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

| Independent Auditors' Report  | 1-2   |
|---|-------|
| Financial Statements  |       |
| Combined Statement of Net Position  | 3     |
| Combined Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position   | 4     |
| Combined Statement of Cash Flows  | 5     |
| Notes to Accompany Financial Statements   | 6-10  |
| Supplementary Financial Information   |       |
| Combining Statement of Net Position   | 11    |
| Combining Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position  | 12    |
| Combining Statement of Cash Flows   | 13    |
| Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position-Water System-Budget and Actual   | 14    |
| Statement of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position-Sewer System-Budget and Actual   | 15    |
| Supplementary Non-Financial Information   |       |
| Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Complian and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance | ice   |
| with Government Auditing Standards  | 16-17 |
| Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs   | 18    |
| Schedule of Prior Findings and Questioned Costs   | 19    |

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System Huttig, Arkansas 71747

#### Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System, enterprise funds of the City of Huttig, Arkansas as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

#### Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement to the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

#### **Opinion**

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas as of December 31, 2020, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Emphasis of Matter**

As discussed in Note A, the financial statements present only the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the city of Huttig, Arkansas as of December 31, 2020, the changes in financial position, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

#### Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information shown on pages 12 to 16 is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statement or to the financial statement themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Management has omitted the management, discussion, and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

#### Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated June 26, 2023, on our consideration of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas internal control over financial reporting and our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, and grants. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wood and Wood, Ltd. Magnolia, AR

Wand Was Lord

June 26, 2023

## COMBINED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION December 31, 2020

#### **ASSETS**

| Current Accets  |                      |
|---|----------------------|
| Current Assets Cash in Banks, Inclusive of \$3,779 Restricted Meter Deposit Fund (Note A) | \$ 145,481           |
| Cash in Banks, inclusive of \$5,779 Restricted Meter Deposit Fund (Note A)                | 42,357               |
| Accounts Receivable-Customers, Net of Bad Debts Allowance of \$13,460                     |                      |
| Accounts Receivable- General Fund   | 5,685                |
| Total Current Assets  | <u>\$ 193,523</u>    |
| Described Assets  |                      |
| Restricted Assets   | e 16 500             |
| Cash in Bank, Net of \$3,779 Restricted Meter Deposit Fund (Note A)                       | \$ 16,580            |
| Cash in Bank, ADFA Escrow Account   | 5,311                |
| Cash in Bank, Depreciation Fund   | 40,212               |
| Total Restricted Assets   | \$ 62,103            |
|   |                      |
| Capital Assets (Notes A and B)  | Φ 15 100             |
| Land  | \$ 15,180            |
| Water-Sewer, Buildings, Wells and Equipment   | 2,802,453            |
| Truck and Backhoe   | 56,699               |
| Sewer System, Plant and Equipment   | 615,790              |
| Total   | \$ 3,490,122         |
| Accumulated Depreciation  | 1,232,083            |
| •   | \$ 2,258,039         |
| Net Capital Assets  | \$ 2,230,039         |
| Total Assets  | <u>\$ 2,513,665</u>  |
|   |                      |
| <u>LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION</u>   |                      |
| Current Liabilities   |                      |
| Accounts Payable-Trade  | \$ 2,223             |
| Taxes Payable, Collected, Withheld and Accrued  | 4,158                |
| Payable from Restricted Assets  | ,                    |
| Customer Meter Deposits   | 16,580               |
| Accrued Interest  |                      |
|   | 2,372                |
| Bond Payable-Current Portion  | 20,777               |
| Total Current Liabilities   | <u>\$ 46,110</u>     |
| Long-Term Liabilities   |                      |
|   | e 427.724            |
| Bond Payable-ADFA (Note E)  | \$ 427,724           |
| Total Long-Term Liabilities   | \$ 427,724           |
| Total Liabilities   | \$ 473,834           |
| Total Elabilities   | <del>9 475,854</del> |
| Net Position  |                      |
| Investment in Capital Assets  | \$ 1,809,538         |
| Restricted: for Debt Service Fund   | 0                    |
| Restricted: for Depreciation Fund   |                      |
| Unrestricted  | 40,212               |
| Total Net Position  | 190,081              |
| i otal inel Losition  | <u>\$ 2,039,831</u>  |
| Total Liabilities and Net Position  | ¢ 2512666            |
|   | <u>\$ 2,513,665</u>  |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

## COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION For the year ended December 31, 2020

| Operating Revenues  |                      |
|---|----------------------|
| Water Sales   | \$ 130,223           |
| Sewer Sales   | 15,643               |
| Other Sales   | 4,719                |
| Total   | <u>\$ 150,585</u>    |
|   |                      |
| Operating Expenses  |                      |
| Salaries  | \$ 64,123            |
| Labor   | 3,000                |
| Payroll Taxes   | 4,905                |
| Office Expense  | 2,168                |
| Fuel Cost-Electricity   | 16,390               |
| Repairs and Supplies  | 11,459               |
| Laboratory Expense  | 5,040                |
| Vehicle Expense   | 2,876                |
| Travel, Meals and School  | 276                  |
| Accounting and Auditing   | 0                    |
| Dues, Subscriptions and Licenses                                      | 6,190                |
| Bad Debts   | 0                    |
| General Unclassified  | 456                  |
| Depreciation  | 88,860               |
| Total Operating Expenses  | <u>\$ 205,743</u>    |
| Operating Income or (Loss) Prior to Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) | \$( 55,15 <u>8</u> ) |
| Operating income of (Loss) That to Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)  | Ψ( 33,130)           |
| Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                                     |                      |
| Interest Revenue  | \$ 190               |
| Grant Income  | 66,303               |
| Interest Expense  | ( 13,095)            |
| Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                               | \$ 53,398            |
|   |                      |
| Net Income (Loss)   | \$( 1,760)           |
|   |                      |
| Net Position-December 31, 2019  | <u>2,041,591</u>     |
| N. B. W. B. J. 01 0000  |                      |
| Net Position-December 31, 2020  | <u>\$ 2,039,831</u>  |

#### COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended December 31, 2020

| Cash Flows from Operating Activities  |          |         |
|---|----------|---------|
| Cash Received from Customers-Sales and Other  | \$       | 162,362 |
| Cash Received from Customers-Meter Deposits   |          | 1,150   |
| Cash Paid to Customers-Meter Deposit Refunds  | (        | 250)    |
| Cash Paid to Employees for Services   | (        | 64,123) |
| Cash Paid for Employment Taxes  | (        | 4,783)  |
| Cash Paid for Sales Tax Collections   | (        | 8,796)  |
| Cash Paid for Goods and Services  | (        | 46,934) |
| Cash Paid for Garbage Fees  | (        | 1,159)  |
| Cash Paid for Water Conservation Fees   |          | 1,430)  |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities  | \$       | 36,037  |
| Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities                                      |          |         |
| Bond Payment-Principal  | \$(      | 76,499) |
| Bond Payment-Interest   | Ì        | 13,126) |
| Grant Income  |          | 66,303  |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities                          | \$(      | 23,322) |
| Cash Flows from Investing Activities  |          |         |
| Interest Received on Cash Funds   | \$       | 190     |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities  | \$       | 190     |
| Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  | \$       | 12,905  |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year  |          | 194,679 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year  | \$       | 207,584 |
|   |          |         |
| Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Ac         | tivities | 5       |
| Operating Income or (Loss)  | \$(      | 55,158) |
|   |          | , ,     |
| Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operatin Activities: | ıg       |         |
| Depreciation  |          | 88,860  |
| (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable  |          | 774     |
| Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable   | 1        | 819)    |
| Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable  Increase (Decrease) in Taxes Payable                 | (        | 1,480   |
| Increase (Decrease) (Net) in Customers Deposits   |          | 900     |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities  | \$       | 36,037  |
| rect Cash Frontied (Osca) by Operating Activities   | <u> </u> | 70,02/  |

### NOTES TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS December 31, 2020

#### Note A: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Huttig, Arkansas, operates under the Mayor-Council form of government. The Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System are enterprise funds of the City of Huttig, Arkansas. Operations are directed by the City Council.

The accounting policies of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System, are designed to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to governmental proprietary fund types.

#### (1) The Reporting Entity

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System, enterprise funds of the City of Huttig, Arkansas, for financial purposes, reports only on the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System.

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System does not have oversight responsibility for any other governmental unit as no other governmental entities are considered to be controlled by or dependent upon the Water and Sewer System. Control or dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding and appointment or construction of the respective governing board.

The excluded funds, account groups and other enterprise funds are examined and reported thereon by other auditors.

#### (2) Proprietary Fund Types-Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for (a) operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that costs (expenses including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the enterprise fund's ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer system are charges to customers for water and sewer sales and services. Operating expenses for the water and sewer system include the cost of pumping, treating, and delivering water and sewer discharge, maintenance of equipment and lines, administrative services, and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

#### (3) Basis of Accounting/Revenue Recognition

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied. The enterprise funds of the city are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting.

The water and sewer system recognized revenue as water and sewer services are provided to customer, which happens over time as the service is delivered and the performance obligation is satisfied. Revenues recognized in an accounting period include amounts billed to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last billing to the end of the accounting period. Unbilled amounts are calculated by deriving estimates based on average daily usage of the billing cycle immediately following the accounting period. Unbilled amounts are included in accounts receivable and operating revenues in the financial statements.

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas, applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board pronouncements as well as the Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Governmental Accounting Board pronouncements.

#### (4) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System, a component unit of the City of Huttig, Arkansas, maintains cash deposits and cash equivalents; (ie; checking accounts, savings passbooks and certificates of deposit) in eligible banks within the State of Arkansas.

Generally, state laws require that municipal funds be deposited in federally insured banks located in the State of Arkansas. The municipal deposits may be in the form of checking accounts, savings and/or time deposits. Public funds may also be invested in direct obligations of the United States of America and obligations on which principal and interest are fully guaranteed by the United States of America.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System considers checking accounts, savings accounts, mutual fund investments, and certificates of deposit of short-term duration to be cash and/or cash equivalents.

#### (5) Capital Assets and Long-Term Liabilities

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to capital assets and long-term liabilities associated with a fund are determined by its measurement focus.

Property, plant, and equipment are valued at historical cost. Donated property, plant and equipment are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated.

The enterprise fund of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System accounts for its property, plant, and equipment on a cost of service or "capital maintenance" measurement focus. This means that all assets or liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with its activity are included on its statement of net position. The reported net position (net total assets) is segregated into investment in property, plant, and equipment, donated capital, and net position components.

Depreciation is provided in the enterprise fund of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of depreciable assets to operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Water and Sewer System (original), Buildings, Wells and Equipment

40 years
Truck and Backhoe
Sewer System (New) Plant and Equipment

40 years
40 years

#### (6) Payable from Restricted Assets

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System restricts certain assets for payment of meter deposits of their customers. These assets are as follows:

| Cash in Bank-Meter Deposits Reserve | \$<br>16,580 |
|-------------------------------------|--------------|
|                                     | \$<br>16,580 |

#### (7) Credit Risk

The City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System provides water and sewer services to the citizens and commercial or industrial business located in the systems' service area.

#### (8) Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### Note B: Capital Assets

The following is a summary of the property, plant, and equipment of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System as recorded December 31, 2020.

|                | Cost         | Depreciation | Book Value   |
|----------------|--------------|--------------|--------------|
| Capital Assets | 12-31-20     | Allowance    | 12-31-20     |
| Land           | \$ 15,180    | \$           | \$ 15,180    |
| Water System   | 2,859,152    | 829,253      | 2,029,899    |
| Sewer System   | 615,790      | 402,830      | 212,960      |
| Total          | \$ 3,490,122 | \$ 1,232,083 | \$ 2,258,039 |

Depreciation for the year 2020 totaled \$88,860.

The following is a summary of additions to property, plant and equipment for the year ending December 31, 2020.

|              |      | Cost              | Add/Trans | Dis/Trans |     | Cost      |
|--------------|------|-------------------|-----------|-----------|-----|-----------|
|              | 12-  | 31-19             | 12-31-20  | 12-31-20  |     | 12-31-20  |
| Land         | \$   | 15,180            | \$        | \$        | \$  | 15,180    |
| Water System | 2    | 2,859,152         |           |           |     | 2,859,152 |
| Sewer System |      | 615,790           |           |           |     | 615,790   |
| Total        | \$ 3 | 3 <u>,490,122</u> | \$        | \$        | \$_ | 3,490,122 |

The City of Huttig, Arkansas, on June 12, 2017, issued its \$525,000 Water Revenue Bond, Series 2017A. The bond is issued to the Arkansas Development Finance Authority as part of the Arkansas Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund, administered by the Arkansas Natural Resources Commission.

The ordinance authorizing the issuance of the bond and the Memorandum of Agreement between the parties requires that the City of Huttig, Arkansas establish a depreciation reserve to be in an amount equal to 6% of the gross monthly revenue of the water system until the fund contains at least \$210,000.

The construction contract for the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water Line Replacement Project was awarded to Goslee Contracting, LLC of Royal, Arkansas in the amount of \$1,501,243 and Layne Christensen Co. of Stuttgart, AR in the amount of 221,416.

#### Note C: Fair Value

The carrying amount reflected in the Combined Statement of Net Position relative to cash and cash equivalents approximates the respective fair values of such accounts. The long-term debt, as presented in the statement of net position, approximates the market price of such instruments of similar circumstances.

#### Note D: Public Fund Deposits and Investments

State Statutes and Ordinances of the city govern the investment policies of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System. Statutes do not require collateralization for demand deposits, time deposits and certificates of deposit in excess of coverage afforded by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States of America. However, agencies of the federal government wherein federal funds are involved generally require collateralization.

The city's deposits and investments are categorized below to indicate the risk level assumed by the city as of December 31, 2020.

#### Deposit Categories of Credit Risk

- (A) Insured or collateralized with securities held by the entity or by its agent in the entity's name.
- (B) Collateralized by/with securities held by the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the entity's name.
- (C) Uncollateralized

#### **Investment Categories of Credit Risk**

- (1) Insured or registered securities held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name.
- (2) Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party trust department or agent in the entity's name.
- (3) Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counter party or by its trust department or agent but not in the entity's name.

|   | Deposit <u>Category</u> |    | er & Sewe<br>ystem | rTo | tal Carrying<br>Amount | Bank Balances |         |
|---|-------------------------|----|--------------------|-----|------------------------|---------------|---------|
| Cash and Certificates-T                     | otal                    | \$ | 207,584            | \$  | 207,584                | <u>\$</u>     | 207,890 |
| Cash and Certificates Cash and Certificates | A<br>B                  |    |                    | \$  | 207,584                | \$            | 207,890 |
| Cash and Certificates ADFA Trust Fund       | C                       |    |                    |     | 0                      |               | 0       |
| ADIA Trust rung                             |                         |    |                    | \$  | 207,584                | \$            | 207,890 |

The financial institution issued a pledge of securities in amounts sufficient to cover the balances in excess of FDIC amounts. However, none of the securities are issued in the entity's name. The reported amounts do not consider any funds other than funds of the water and sewer systems of the City of Huttig, Arkansas.

#### Note E: Long-Term Liabilities-Enterprise Funds:

The long-term liabilities of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer Systems consist of the following bond payable as of December 31, 2020.

ADFA Bond Series 2017A at 1.5% interest rate in the amount of \$525,000. Payable over a period of 20 years beginning October 15, 2020.

The long-term liabilities transactions relative to the ADFA Bond payable are as follows:

| ADFA Bond Payable; January 1, 2020 | \$ 525,000 |
|------------------------------------|------------|
| Borrowings                         | 0          |
| Principal Payments                 | 76,499     |
| Balance, December 31, 2020         | \$ 448,501 |

The annual requirements to amortize the ADFA bond payable, is as follows:

| Year Ending |           | Payment | Servicing    | Loan         | Pr | incipal |
|-------------|-----------|---------|--------------|--------------|----|---------|
| December 31 |           | Amount  | <br>Fee      | <br>Interest | _P | ayment  |
| 2021        | \$        | 31,860  | \$<br>4,433  | \$<br>6,650  | \$ | 20,777  |
| 2022        |           | 31,861  | 4,224        | 6,337        |    | 21,300  |
| 2023        |           | 31,861  | 4,010        | 6,015        |    | 21,836  |
| 2024        |           | 31,861  | 3,790        | 5,686        |    | 22,385  |
| 2025        |           | 31,860  | 3,565        | 5,348        |    | 22,947  |
| 2026-2030   |           | 159,303 | 14,243       | 21,365       |    | 123,695 |
| 2031-2035   |           | 159,296 | 7,690        | 11,548       |    | 140,058 |
| 2036-2040   |           | 78,325  | <br>1,129    | <br>1,693    |    | 75,503  |
|             | <u>\$</u> | 556,227 | \$<br>43,084 | \$<br>64,642 | \$ | 448,501 |

#### Note F: Insurance Coverage

#### Property Insurance-Arkansas Municipal League:

Policy Period: April 20, 2020, through April 20, 2021, covering the certain fixed property of the City of Huttig, Arkansas and the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer. The policy contains a provision for a deductible of \$5,000 on each property.

#### Vehicle Coverage-Arkansas Municipal League:

Policy Period: January 27, 2020, through January 26, 2021, covering the trucks, tractors, automobiles, and related equipment, (collision and liability coverage) of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer Systems. The policy contains a provision for a deductible of \$500 on each property including both collision and liability coverage.

#### Workmen's Compensation-Arkansas Municipal League:

Policy period: January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020, Statutory Coverage as required by the State of Arkansas

#### Fidelity Bond Coverage-Governmental Bonding Board-Fidelity Bond Trust

Policy Period: January 1, 2020, through December 31, 2020. Fidelity Bond (Self-insured trust) established by Act 728 of 1987. Coverage: all employees of the city, \$250,000 with \$1,000 deductible.

All insurance costs relative to the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System were paid by the City of Huttig, Arkansas General Fund.

#### Note H: Management Review

The management of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System has evaluated subsequent events through June 26, 2023, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.



#### COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION December 31, 2020

#### **ASSETS**

|  | _         | Water<br>System |           | Sewer<br>System | _ <u>C</u> | ombined   |
|--|-----------|-----------------|-----------|-----------------|------------|-----------|
| Cach in Ponks Inclusive of \$2,770 Postrioted                      |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Cash in Banks, Inclusive of \$3,779 Restricted Meter Deposits Fund | \$        | 139,412         | \$        | 6,069           | \$         | 145,481   |
| Accounts Receivable-Customers                                      | Ψ         | 35,732          | Ψ         | 6,625           | Ψ          | 42,357    |
| Accounts Receivable-General Fund                                   |           | 5,685           |           | 0,020           |            | 5,685     |
| Total Current Assets   | \$        | 180,829         | \$        | 12,694          | \$         | 193,523   |
|  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Restricted Assets  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Cash in Bank, Net of \$3,779 Restricted Meter Deposits             | \$        | 16,580          | \$        |                 | \$         | 16,580    |
| Cash in Bank, ADFA Escrow Account                                  |           | 5,311           |           |                 |            | 5,311     |
| Cash in Bank, Depreciation Fund                                    | _         | 40,212          | _         |                 |            | 40,212    |
| Total Restricted Assets  | <u>\$</u> | 62,103          | \$        |                 | <u>\$</u>  | 62,103    |
| Capital Assets   |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Land   | \$        |                 | \$        | 15,180          | \$         | 15,180    |
| Water-Sewer, Buildings, Wells & Equipment                          | Ψ         | 2,802,453       | Ψ         | 15,100          | Ψ          | 2,802,453 |
| Trucks and Backhoe   |           | 56,699          |           |                 |            | 56,699    |
| Sewer System, Plant and Equipment                                  |           | 00,000          |           | 615,790         |            | 615,790   |
| Total  | \$        | 2,859,152       | \$        | 630,970         | \$         | 3,490,122 |
| Accumulated Depreciation   |           | 829,253         |           | 402,830         |            | 1,232,083 |
| Net Capital Assets   | \$        | 2,029,899       | \$        | 228,140         | \$_        | 2,258,039 |
| Total Assets   | <u>\$</u> | 2,272,831       | <u>\$</u> | 240,834         | <u>\$</u>  | 2,513,665 |
| * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *                              | m         | OTMY OF T       |           |                 |            |           |
| <u>LIABILITIES AND NE</u>  | T PO      | SITION          |           |                 |            |           |
| Current Liabilities  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Accounts Payable-Trade   | \$        | 795             | \$        | 1,428           | \$         | 2,223     |
| Taxes Payable, Collected, Withheld and Accrued                     | Ψ.        | 4,158           | *         | 1,720           | •          | 4,158     |
| Payable from Restricted Assets                                     |           | .,150           |           |                 |            | .,        |
| Customer Meter Deposits  |           | 16,580          |           |                 |            | 16,580    |
| Accrued Interest   |           | 2,372           |           |                 |            | 2,372     |
| Bond Payable-Current Portion                                       |           | 20,777          |           |                 |            | 20,777    |
| Total Current Liabilities  | \$        | 44,682          | \$        | 1,428           | \$         | 46,110    |
|  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Long Term Liabilities  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Bond Payable-ADFA  | <u>\$</u> | 427,724         | \$        |                 | \$         | 427,724   |
| Total Long-Term Liabilities  | \$        | 427,724         | <u>\$</u> |                 | <u>\$</u>  | 427,724   |
| Total Liabilities  | \$        | 472,406         | <u>\$</u> | 1,428           | <u>\$</u>  | 473,834   |
|  |           |                 |           |                 |            |           |
| Net Position   | _         |                 | _         |                 | _          |           |
| Investment in Capital Assets                                       | \$        | 1,581,398       | \$        | 228,140         | \$         | 1,809,538 |
| Restricted: for Debt Service Fund                                  |           | 0               |           |                 |            | 0         |
| Restricted: for Depreciation Fund                                  |           | 40,212          |           | 11.0//          |            | 40,212    |
| Unrestricted Total Net Position                                    | <u></u>   | 178,815         | -         | 11,266          | <u> </u>   | 190,081   |
| Total Net Position   | \$        | 1,800,425       | \$        | 239,406         | <u>\$</u>  | 2,039,831 |
| Total Liabilities and Net Position                                 | <u>\$</u> | 2,272,831       | <u>\$</u> | 240,834         | <u>\$</u>  | 2,513,665 |

## COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION For the year ended December 31, 2020

|   |            | Water<br>System |           | Sewer<br>System | C         | ombined   |
|---|------------|-----------------|-----------|-----------------|-----------|-----------|
| Operating Revenues  |            |                 |           |                 | _         |           |
| Water Sales   | \$         | 130,223         |           | 15,643          | \$        | 130,223   |
| Sewer Sales   |            | 4.510           |           |                 |           | 15,643    |
| Other Sales   | _          | 4,719           |           | 15.640          |           | 4,719     |
| Total Operating Income                                      | <u>\$</u>  | 134,942         | <u>\$</u> | 15,643          | \$_       | 150,585   |
| Operating Expenses  |            |                 |           |                 |           |           |
| Salaries  | \$         | 64,123          | \$        |                 | \$        | 64,123    |
| Labor   |            | 3,000           |           |                 |           | 3,000     |
| Payroll Taxes   |            | 4,905           |           |                 |           | 4,905     |
| Office Expense  |            | 2,168           |           |                 |           | 2,168     |
| Fuel Cost-Electricity                                       |            | 8,152           |           | 8,238           |           | 16,390    |
| Repairs and Supplies  |            | 8,576           |           | 2,883           |           | 11,459    |
| Laboratory Expenses   |            |                 |           | 5,040           |           | 5,040     |
| Vehicle Expense   |            | 2,876           |           |                 |           | 2,876     |
| Travel, Meals and School                                    |            |                 |           | 276             |           | 276       |
| Accounting and Auditing                                     |            |                 |           |                 |           | 0         |
| Dues, Subscriptions and Licenses                            |            | 6,190           |           |                 |           | 6,190     |
| Bad Debts   |            |                 |           |                 |           | 0         |
| General Unclassified  |            | 456             |           |                 |           | 456       |
| Depreciation  |            | 69,391          |           | 19,469          |           | 88,860    |
| Total Operating Expenses                                    | \$         | 169,837         | \$        | 35,906          | \$        | 205,743   |
| Total Operating Expenses                                    | Ψ          | 105,057         | Ψ         | 22,700          | 9         | 20017.10  |
| Operating Income or (Loss) Prior to Non-Operating Rev (Exp) | <u>\$(</u> | 34,895)         | \$(_      | 20,263)         | \$(_      | 55,158)   |
| Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                           |            |                 |           |                 |           |           |
| Interest Revenue  | \$         | 190             | \$        | 0               | \$        | 190       |
| Grant Income  |            | 66,303          |           |                 |           | 66,303    |
| Interest Expense  | _(_        | 13,095)         |           |                 | (         | 13,095)   |
| Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                     | \$         | 53,398          | \$        | 0               | \$        | 53,398    |
| Net Income (Loss)   | \$         | 18,503          | \$(       | 20,263)         | \$(       | 1,760)    |
| Net Position, December 31, 2019                             |            | 1,781,922       |           | 259,669         |           | 2,041,591 |
| Net Position, December 31, 2020                             | \$         | 1,800,425       | \$        | 239,406         | <u>\$</u> | 2,039,831 |

## COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS For the year ended December 31, 2020

|   | Water<br>System |         | Sewer<br>System |          | Combined  |         |
|---|-----------------|---------|-----------------|----------|-----------|---------|
| Cash Flows from Operating Activities  |                 | _       |                 |          |           |         |
| Cash Received from Customers-Sales and Other  | \$              | 148,848 | \$              | 13,514   | \$        | 162,362 |
| Cash Received from Customers-Meter Deposits   |                 | 1,150   |                 |          |           | 1,150   |
| Cash Paid to Customers-Meter Deposits Refunds   | (               | 250)    |                 |          | (         | 250)    |
| Cash Paid to Employees for Services   | (               | 64,123) |                 |          | (         | 64,123) |
| Cash Paid for Employment Taxes  | (               | 4,783)  |                 |          | (         | 4,783)  |
| Cash Paid for Sales Tax Collections   | (               | 8,796)  |                 |          | (         | 8,796)  |
| Cash Paid for Goods and Services  | (               | 31,522) | (               | 15,412)  | (         | 46,934) |
| Cash Paid for Garbage Fees  | (               | 1,159)  |                 |          | (         | 1,159)  |
| Cash Paid for Water Conservation Fee  |                 | 1,430)  |                 |          |           | 1,430)  |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities  | \$              | 37,935  | \$(_            | 1,898)   | \$        | 36,037  |
| Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities  |                 |         |                 |          |           |         |
| Bond Payment - Principal  | \$(             | 76,499) |                 |          | \$(       | 76,499) |
| Bond Payment-Interest   | (               | 13,126) |                 |          | (         | 13,126) |
| Grant Income  |                 | 66,303  |                 |          |           | 66,303  |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital   |                 |         |                 |          |           |         |
| And Related Financing Activities  | <u>\$(</u>      | 23,322) | \$              |          | \$(       | 23,322) |
| Cash Flows from Investing Activities  |                 |         |                 |          |           |         |
| Interest Received on Cash Funds   | \$              | 190     | <u>\$</u>       | 0        | <u>\$</u> | 190     |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities  | \$              | 190     | <u>\$</u>       | 0        | <u>\$</u> | 190     |
| Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents  | \$              | 14,803  | \$(             | 1,898)   | \$        | 12,905  |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year  |                 | 186,712 |                 | 7,967    |           | 194,679 |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year  | \$              | 201,515 | <u>\$</u>       | 6,069    | <u>\$</u> | 207,584 |
| Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided  |                 |         |                 | <u>s</u> |           |         |
| Operating Income (Loss) Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities | <b>\$</b> (     | 34,895) | \$(             | 20,263)  | \$(       | 55,158) |
| Depreciation  |                 | 69,391  |                 | 19,469   |           | 88,860  |
| (Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable  |                 |         | (               | 1,107)   |           | 774     |
| Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable   | (               | 822)    | •               | 3        | (         | 819)    |
| Increase (Decrease) in Taxes Payable  | ,               | 1,480   |                 | 3        | ,         | 1,480   |
| Increase (Decrease) (Net) in Customer Meter Deposits  |                 | 900     |                 | ···-     |           | 900     |
| Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities  | <u>\$</u>       | 37,935  | <u>\$(</u>      | 1,898)   | \$        | 36,037  |

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION WATER SYSTEM-BUDGET AND ACTUAL For the year ended December 31, 2020

|  | Budget    |                  | Actual     |           | Favorable<br>(Unfavorable) |                 |
|--|-----------|------------------|------------|-----------|----------------------------|-----------------|
| Operating Revenues                                   |           |                  |            |           |                            |                 |
| Sales-Water and Other                                | \$        | 146,400          | \$         | 134,942   | <u>\$(</u>                 | <u>11,458</u> ) |
| Total Operating Revenues                             | \$        | 146,400          | <u>\$</u>  | 134,942   | <u>\$(</u>                 | 11,458)         |
| Operating Expenses                                   |           |                  |            |           |                            |                 |
| Salaries   | \$        | 66,400           | \$         | 67,123    | \$(                        | 723)            |
| Payroll Taxes  |           | 5,100            |            | 4,905     | ·                          | 195             |
| Office Expense                                       |           | 4,000            |            | 2,168     |                            | 1,832           |
| Fuel Cost-Electricity                                |           | 8,000            |            | 8,152     | (                          | 152)            |
| Repairs and Maintenance                              |           | 10,000           |            | 8,576     | `                          | 1,424           |
| Vehicle Expense and Travel                           |           | 6,000            |            | 2,876     |                            | 3,124           |
| Accounting and Auditing                              |           | 0                |            | 0         |                            | 0               |
| Dues and Fees  |           | 400              |            | 6,190     | (                          | 5,790)          |
| Bad Debts  |           | 0                |            | 0,130     | `                          | 0               |
| Unclassified and Insurance                           |           | 7,000            |            | 456       |                            | 6,544           |
| Depreciation   |           | 9,500            |            | 69,391    | (                          | 59,891)         |
| Total Operating Expenses                             | \$        | 116,400          | \$         | 169,837   | \$(                        | 53,437)         |
| Operating Income or (Loss) Prior to Transfers In-Out | <u>\$</u> | 30,000           | <u>\$(</u> | 34,895)   | <u>\$(</u>                 | 64,895)         |
| <u>Transfers</u>                                     |           |                  |            |           |                            |                 |
| Allocated Sales Tax and Miscellaneous                | \$        |                  | \$         | 0         | \$                         |                 |
| Total Transfers In-Out                               | <u>\$</u> |                  | \$         | 0         | \$                         |                 |
| Income or (Loss) Prior to Non-Operating              |           |                  |            |           |                            |                 |
| Revenue (Expense)                                    | \$        | 30,000           | \$(        | 34,895)   | \$(                        | 64,895)         |
| Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                    |           |                  |            | /         |                            |                 |
| Interest Revenue                                     | \$        |                  | \$         | 190       | \$                         | 190             |
| Grant Income   | •         |                  | •          | 66,303    | -                          | 66,303          |
| Interest Expense                                     |           |                  | (          | 13,095)   | _(_                        | 13,095)         |
| Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)              | \$        |                  | \$         | 53,398    | \$                         | 53,398          |
| roun ron operating november (Emperiore)              | У         | ·                | Ψ          | 33,370    | Ψ                          | 33,370          |
| Net Income (Loss)                                    | \$        | 30,000           | \$         | 18,503    | \$(                        | 11,497)         |
| Net Position, December 31, 2019                      |           | <u>1,781,922</u> |            | 1,781,922 |                            | 0               |
| Net Position, December 31, 2020                      | \$        | 1,811,922        | <u>\$</u>  | 1,800,425 | <u>\$(</u>                 | 11,497)         |

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION SEWER SYSTEM-BUDGET AND ACTUAL For the year ended December 31, 2020

|   | Budget    |              | Actual     |         | Favorable<br>( <u>Unfavorable</u> ) |         |
|---|-----------|--------------|------------|---------|-------------------------------------|---------|
| Operating Revenues                                      |           | 4= 000       |            |         | •                                   |         |
| Sales-Sewer and Other                                   | \$        | 17,000       | \$         | 15,643  | \$(                                 | 1,357)  |
| Total Operating Revenues                                | \$        | 17,000       | \$         | 15,643  | \$(                                 | 1,357)  |
| Operating Expenses                                      |           |              |            |         |                                     |         |
| Fuel Costs-Electricity                                  | \$        | 8,000        | \$         | 8,238   | \$(                                 | 238)    |
| Office Expense  |           | 0            |            | 276     | (                                   | 276)    |
| Repairs and Maintenance                                 |           | 2,000        |            | 2,883   | į.                                  | 883)    |
| Laboratory Expense                                      |           | 5,000        |            | 5,040   | į.                                  | 40)     |
| Depreciation  |           | 0            |            | 19,469  | Ĺ                                   | 19,469) |
| Total Operating Expenses                                | \$        | 15,000       | \$         | 35,906  | \$(                                 | 20,906) |
| Operating Income or (Loss) Prior to Transfers In-Out    | \$        | 2,000        | \$(_       | 20,263) | <u>\$(</u>                          | 22,263) |
| <u>Transfers</u>  |           |              |            |         |                                     |         |
| Allocated Special Sales Tax and Miscellaneous           | \$        | <del>_</del> | \$         |         | \$                                  |         |
| Total Transfers In-Out                                  | \$        |              | <u>\$</u>  |         | \$                                  |         |
| Income or Loss Prior to Non-Operating Income (Expenses) | <u>\$</u> | 2,000        | <u>\$(</u> | 20,263) | <u>\$(</u>                          | 22,263) |
| Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                       |           |              |            |         |                                     |         |
| Interest Revenue  | \$        |              | \$         | 0       | \$                                  |         |
| Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)                 | \$        |              | \$         | 0       | \$                                  | ****    |
| Net Income (Loss)                                       | \$        | 2,000        | \$(        | 20,263) | \$(                                 | 22,263) |
| Net Position-December 31, 2019                          |           | 259,669      |            | 259,669 |                                     |         |
| Net Position-December 31, 2020                          | <u>\$</u> | 261,669      | <u>\$</u>  | 239,406 | <u>\$(</u>                          | 22,263) |



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System Huttig, Arkansas 71747

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer Systems, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 26, 2023.

#### **Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit, we considered, the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas' internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas' internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given the limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 20-1 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

#### **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Huttig, Arkansas Water and Sewer System of the City of Huttig, Arkansas' financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

#### **Purpose of This Report**

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Wood and Wood, Ltd. Magnolia, AR

Land Mad Land

June 26, 2023

#### SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS For the year ended December 31, 2020

#### Section I-Summary of Auditors' Results

#### **Financial Statements**

Type of Auditors' Report Issued: Unqualified

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

Material Weaknesses Identified?

Significant Deficiency Identified, Not Considered

A Material Weakness Yes

Noncompliance Material to Financial Statements Noted?

#### Section II-Financial Statement Findings

#### Item No. 20-1

Condition: Absence of appropriate segregation of duties consistent with appropriate

control objective; (ie; inherent limitation due to small number of employed

personnel). This is a repetitive finding.

Questioned Cost: None

Effect: Not Determinable

Cause: Small Number of Employees

Recommendation: We recommend the development of policies and procedures that would

further segregate the duties of employed personnel.

Management Response: Segregation of duties in the situation where a limited number of personnel

is required is difficult. We will attempt to develop policies and procedures in this area wherever and whenever possible, without the hiring of an additional employee, which at this time is not justifiable economically.

## SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS December 31, 2019

#### Financial Statements Findings

Condition: During our engagement it was noted that the absence of appropriate

segregation of duties consistent with appropriate control objectives, ie, inherent limitation due to a small number of employed personnel.

Questioned Cost: None

Response: This finding is a repetitive finding. The condition is inherent. The

hiring of additional personnel to meet or attain control objectives is not

cost effective.